Bi-monthly Board Meeting Notice

Date: February 4, 2019

(Weather check-in will be at noon on Saturday, we will make the final go/no-go decision at that time.)

Time: 10:00 am to 1:00 pm Central time

Place: Racine Public Library, Emily Lee room, 75-7th Street, Racine WI 53403

Note: We need to be done by 1 for the next group.

Or by phone: Connect by phone at (712)770-4010*, code: 950753#

*If you have trouble connecting with this number, dial in on the backup number - 716.293.9754 - and follow instructions. Still having trouble? Free Conference Call's help line is at 844.844.1322.

Agenda and all documents here: https://www.lwvumrr.org/news--upcoming-events.html

Gather in Emily Lee room between 9:30 and 9:55, meeting starts at 10 am.

10-11:15 - Special Event - Foxconn Update with Louise Petering, LWV WI

Board members from LWV Lake Michigan Region will join us. The planned topics for this discussion:

- What's the current status of the Foxconn development?
- Do we have any glimmers of what the Evers administration might bring here?
- Where do things stand with the Great Lakes Commission and their new members?
- What can LWV's do to promote better outcomes? Goal is to determine next steps.

11:15 - Break

11:30 - Call to order; Operations

Approve December Board meeting minutes – Tam Prenosil (following) Approve Financial Report – Jeri McGinley (to be posted on website)

11:45 - Special Reports

- Update on Farm Bill Gretchen Sabel
- Update on Wisconsin water legislation Carolyn Mahlum Jenkins and Jeri McGinley
- Update on Partnership for absentee landowner workshops with Izaak Walton League Upper Mississippi Initiative Lonni McCauley.

12:15 - Committees

Bylaws committee – Report – see attached, page 5. This is the version to forward to our members. Nominating committee – Still need a candidate for vice-chair. assuming the bylaw

changes that make the vice-chair term concurrent with the chair term.

Annual Meeting committee – Can we establish one of these? Gretchen will volunteer to head it.

Our Annual Meeting could be on Saturday June 1, or on our regular meeting day of June 3,

in the Twin Cities or elsewhere if that's more appropriate.

Membership

Update on membership status

Other Business?

Upcoming meetings (1st Monday of even-numbered months)

April 1, 2019 (location TBD – possibly central Illinois)

June 3, 2019 – possible Annual Meeting date? Would blend with our regular Board meeting. Location TBD – perhaps in Twin Cities area?

1:00 - Adjourn

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER REGION INTER-LEAGUE ORGANIZATION
Board Meeting --- December 3, 2018

Coralville Public Library – Room A 1401 5th Street, Coralville, IA

The nineteenth board meeting of the Upper Mississippi River Region Inter-League Organization (UMRR-ILO) was called to order by Chair Gretchen Sabel (MN-ABC) December 3, 2018 at 10:15 a.m.

Board members attending the meeting in addition to the Chair were: Tamara Prenosil (IA-Dubuque), Lonnie McCauley (MN-Coon Rapids), Mary Ploesser (WI-Madison), Cathy Eisenhoff, IA-Iowa City, Mary Ann Nelson – Nominating Committee (IA-Cedar Rapids)

Attending the meeting by phone conference were: Jeri McGinley (WI-Stevens Point), Judy Beck (IL-Glenview), Toni Dautel (IL-Glenview), John Howard (MN-Winona), Carolyn Mahlum-Jenkin (WI-Lacrosse)

Guests at the Board Meeting: Steve Ploeser (WI-Madison), Jan Maloney (IA-Iowa City)

I. Operations

Secretary's Report: J. McGinley moved, and M. Ploeser seconded that the minutes of the October 1, 2018 Board meeting be approved. Motion carried.

Treasurer's Report: J. McGinley reviewed submitted reports. (BUDGET VS ACTUALS July – November 30, 2018). The November bank balance was \$4,876.85 which included 404.75 of the unspent balance of restricted ERC grant. There were 34 paid UMRR-ILO paid memberships through 11-30-2018. J. McGinley included a list of the chapters that have paid. She requested that in-kind donations as well as volunteer hours through 11-30-2018 be forwarded to her. There was a \$50 expenditure for membership in WFAN paid through the ERC grant. C. Mahlum-Jenkin moved, and L. McCauley seconded that the treasurer's report be accepted. Motion carried.

II. Special Reports

Update on Farm Bill: G. Sabel said that since the election last month and the subsequent change in the House, there may be progress on its passage. The SNAP funding was a sticking point, but the work requirement was pulled out of the bill. The National Sustainable Agriculture Collation has items for the Farm Bill that the LWV UMRR-ILO can support. G. Sabel attends this group's meetings by phone conference. She may send a request to LWVUS for permission to do advocacy on issues this group has researched.

Land and Water Conservation Fund: J. Beck reported this legislation was allowed to sunset because of partisan disagreements. This legislation said that funds from permits to companies for off-shore drilling would be used for conservation in the United States. It helped fund state parks and nature preserves. Many advocacy groups as well as state and regional governmental organizations are advocating to reinstate this legislation.

Update on Lake Michigan water to Mississippi River Basin: C. Mahlum-Jenkin reported there has been no new decisions regarding the lawsuit and Foxcon. There is no good source of information for progress on this issue. Foxcon appears to be scaling back on what was originally in their agreement with the State of Wisconsin. Wisconsin will have a new governor in 2019 and new head of the Wisconsin DNR which has oversite of permits. Advocacy groups are hoping for more stringent requirements. It was mentioned that other states hope to get the Foxcon contracts if Wisconsin falls through. With new governors in some states the make-up of the Great Lakes Council will change. J. Beck suggested the four UMRR-ILO states need to be kept abreast of this issue if official advocacy is needed. Krista Grimm with the Lake Michigan ILO continues to monitor this situation also. Louise Pettering is a Wisconsin person who is quite involved with the Foxcon issues and perhaps a meeting with her and representatives from UMRR-ILO and Great Lakes ILO would be productive.

C. Mahlum-Jenkin reported the Mississippi Basin River Alliance includes the state of Missouri. (This organization has a website. The Upper Mississippi ends at Cairo, Illinois where the Ohio River flows into the Mississippi River. The state LWV in Missouri was initially invited to join the UMRR-ILO but LWVMO declined stating there were other priorities at that time. An invitation will again be sent to LWVMO to join the UMRR-ILO.

Partnership with Izaak Walton League Upper Mississippi Initiative: L. McCauley reported that this group along with the Land Stewardship Project has already co-sponsored three absentee landowner workshops in Minnesota. Three more of these workshops including the Izaak Walton League are planned. Fifty percent of farmland is owned by absentee landlords many of whom are women. The relationship with the IKES is an opportunity to get local LWV chapters to help promote, staff, and make follow-up phone calls with these types of workshops.

Other advocacy groups that might be interested in working with UMRR-ILO include: Green Land-Blue Waters, Farmers and Fishers, Practical Farmers of Iowa, the Winona Watershed group.

Mississippi River Network Annual Meeting: Mary and Steve Ploesser attended this meeting along with about 30 others in New Orleans on November 7, 2018. They said this group currently has five priorities: 1) plastic reduction (cut by 20% - the United States is behind Europe on this); 2) field to market; 3) nutrient source reduction; 4) Infrastructure projects (ex. Catchment basins); 5) habitat restoration. There was an emphasis on reaching out to minorities including people of color and the use of the acronym JEDI (Justice, Equality, Diversity, Inclusion). It was suggested one way to reach minorities is to work with faith-based organizations (ex. Illinois has an organization called 'Faith in Place'. The McKnight Foundation gave the money to One Mississippi. A look at the One Mississippi website show many organizations have signed agreements.

Committees

Bylaws Committee: T. Prenosil reported the Bylaws committee met by phone conference on October 24, 2018. The changes the committee suggested were discussed (and viewed on a power point to facilitate discussion).

J. McGinley suggest wording in Article IV Section 1be shortened by eliminating the words '(as described by the laws.'

In Article IV, Section 2 a **sentence be added** after the first sentence 'All officers may be jointly held by **co-officers'**.

- J. Howard initiated a discussion about **quorum** (Article IV Section 11) The UMRR-ILO Board members present decided that the line 'A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of members of the board and include at least one representative from each of the four (4) member states' **be changed** to say 'at least three representatives from each of the four (4) member states'.
- J. McGinley discussed the need for a **budget commit**tee as stated in Article VII Section 3. The following people agreed to serve on the budget committee: Gretchen Sabel, Toni Dautel, Mary Ploesser, Tam Prenosil. Jeri McGinley will find a non-board member to also serve (consider Ellen Rosbourough).
- T. Prenosil as chair of the bylaws revision committee moved that the proposed changes to the bylaws be presented to UMRR-ILO members and voted on at the Annual Meeting. Motion carried.

Nominating Committee: Mary and Steve Ploesser have agreed to stand for co-chairs for the next two years. Jeri McGinley has agreed to stand for treasurer for the next two years. There is no candidate for Vice Chair (Chair Elect). Our current vice chair who is also currently the Action Committee Chair is interested in remaining as Chair of the Action Committee, but currently does not wish to assume the presidency in two years. There was some discussion of having a co-vice chair that is a member of another organization to bring in some expertise that our board members do not have.

Membership

Gretchen Sabel will send a letter to our LWV chapters thanking them for their support and include a glossy brochure and Action Committee report and informing them they can pay dues online.

Other Business

Climate change will be a river issue. The UMRR-ILO will add this to our program of action for consideration at the June 2019 annual meeting. J. Beck suggested climate change is an issue young people are concerned about. J. Beck said there is a climate change task force with LWVUS and information from this group is sent periodically.

Upcoming Meetings: (first Monday of even-numbered months)

- February 4, 2019 Possibly Milwaukee or Racine Wisconsin
- April 1, 2019 TBA although possibly in Illinois
- June 3, 2019 Possible Annual Meeting date to coincide with our regular Board meeting location possibly the Twin Cities

Board Meeting Adjourned at 12:15

Submitted by Tamara Prenosil, Secretary

Afternoon Public Presentation at the Coralville Public Library:

Mike Delaney, Izaak Walton League Upper Mississippi River Initiative Field Organizer

Chris Henning, Iowa farmer who is implementing sustainable agricultural practices

A working partnership is growing...the League of Women Voters Upper Mississippi River Region and the Izaak Walton League Upper Mississippi River Initiative are working together to support absentee landowners as they work with their renters to improve soil health and the environmental performance of their farmland.

DRAFT changes from Bylaws Committee meeting October 24, 2018; shown in blue.

Additional changes by LWV UMRR Board on December 4, 2018, shown in red.

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS -

UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER REGION ILO BY LAWS

As amended at First Annual Meeting, edits in black from this meeting

ARTICLE I – NAME - The name of this organization shall be the League of Women Voters - Upper Mississippi River Region Inter League Organization, hereinafter referred to as LWV-UMRR ILO. This Upper Mississippi River Region Inter League Organization (ILO) is an integral part of the League of Women Voters of the United States, hereinafter referred to as LWVUS.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSES AND POLICY

Section 1: Purposes. The purposes of the **LWV-UMRR ILO** are to:

- (a) educate the public concerning the necessity of preserving our Region's water resources;
- (b) improve public understanding and active, informed citizen participation in evidence-based decision-making as essential elements of responsible and responsive management of the natural resources of the Upper Mississippi River Region;
- (c) promote resource conservation, science-based stewardship, and long-range planning for managing the region's natural resources, efficient and economical government requiring competent personnel, the clear assignment of responsibilities, adequate financing, effective <u>monitoring and</u> enforcement, coordination among the different agencies and levels of government and well-defined channels for citizen input and review;
- (d) publish on our website, FaceBook page, and other media outlets information related to resource preservation efforts and developments;
- (e) meet with governmental representatives to report to governmental committees, agencies, and boards; and generally to attempt to help local, state and federal lawmakers establish enforceable legislation to help protect the region's natural resources;
- (f) expand and redefine our educational and environmental program from time to time as necessary to meet the continuing challenge of protecting our region's natural resources; and
 - (g) collaborate with non-profit and advocacy groups to leverage impact across political boundaries

Section 2. IRC Section 501(c)(3) Purposes [To be added if vote for non-profit status]

This corporation is organized exclusively for one or more of the purposes as specified in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 3: Policy. The LWV-UMRR ILO shall not support or oppose any political party or candidate.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1: The four state Leagues within the Upper Mississippi River Basin (Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, and Wisconsin) shall be dues paying members of the **LWV-UMRR ILO**.

Section 2: All League members of dues-paying local Leagues in communities within the Upper Mississippi River Basin region shall be members of the **LWV-UMRR ILO**.

ARTICLE IV – THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1: Voting members of the Board of Directors shall consist of the officers (Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer); a representative appointed by each of the four state LWVs of Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, and Wisconsin; the Past Chair; a Communications Director; and other such members as prescribed in the bylaws (as described by the by-laws in Article IV Section 7).

Section 2: Enumeration, Qualification and Terms of Officers

The officers of the LWV-UMRR ILO shall be a chair, a secretary, a treasurer, and a vice-chair (chair elect). All offices may be jointly held by co-officers. All officers shall be members of LWV-UMRR ILO. The chair, vice-chair, and treasurer shall be elected at the first annual meeting and at each annual meeting thereafter in each odd numbered year to hold office for two (2) years or until their successors have been elected and qualified. The secretary and vice chair shall be elected at the first annual meeting to hold office for a one year term and at each annual meeting thereafter in even numbered years to hold office for two (2) years or until their successors have been elected and qualified. No person shall be elected to more than two successive terms of two years in the same position. The Chair shall be elected for no more than two successive terms of two years.

Section 3: **The Chair.** The chair shall preside at all meetings of the organization and board of directors. The chair shall be, *ex officio*, a member of all committees except the nominating committee. The chair shall have such usual powers of supervision and management as may pertain to the office, may sign or endorse checks, drafts, and notes in the absence of the treasurer, and perform such other duties as may be designated by the board. A co-chair may be added.

Section 4: The Secretary. The secretary shall keep minutes of the annual meeting and meetings of the board of directors. The secretary shall perform such other duties as directed by the board.

Section 5: **The Treasurer.** The treasurer (or an alternate to be appointed by the board of directors) shall collect and receive all monies due. The treasurer shall be the custodian of these monies, shall deposit them in a bank and disburse the same upon order of the board. The treasurer shall present statements to the board at its regular meetings and a report to the annual **LWV-UMRR ILO** meeting. The treasurer, <u>in consultation with the Board</u>, shall be responsible to arrange for an annual financial review or audit of the books.

Section 6: The Vice Chair (Chair Elect) The vice chair shall preside in the absence of the chair. The vice chair shall may assume the office of the Chair after one or two terms as vice chair. The vice chair shall perform such other duties as directed by the board.

Section 7: There shall be one representative and one alternate appointed by each of the LWV boards of Iowa, Illinois, Minnesota, and Wisconsin to serve as directors. Alternate representatives vote only in the absence of the representative. The terms of the state board representatives shall be two years without term limits. Any vacancy of a state representative or alternate position may be filled by the appropriate state LWV board. It shall be the responsibility of each of the state representatives to act as a liaison to his or her respective state board for communication and information purposes. However, the appointed director is not required to be a member of his or her state board.

Section 8: The immediate past chair shall serve as a director on the ILO board. The past chair may assume the duties of the chair if requested by the chair to do so.

Section 9: An additional director shall be elected at the annual meeting to serve as the Director of Communications with the responsibility of developing and maintaining online communications to members and the public. The term of the Director of Communications will be two years without term limits.

Section 10: Powers. The board shall manage and supervise the business, affairs, and activities of the **LWV-UMRR ILO** subject to the instructions of the annual meeting. It shall select delegates to member state conventions and councils and to national conventions and national councils. It shall accept responsibility for such other matters as the national or state boards may from time to time assign to it. It shall have the power to create such special committees as it deems necessary and shall perform such other duties as are specified in these bylaws.

Section 11: Quorum. A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of voting members of the board and include at least one representative from three (3) of the four (4) member state Leagues. Any one or more members of the board may participate by means of electronic communications, including conference telephone, allowing all persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

Section 12: Meetings. There shall be at least six (6) regular meetings of the board annually. Members of the board shall be notified of all regular meetings at least one (1) month previous to such meeting. The chair may call special meetings and shall call a special meeting upon the written request of four (4) members of the board.

Section 13: Written Consent. In accordance with Section 181.0821, Wis. Stats., any action that would be taken at a meeting of the Board, except for filling vacancies on the Board or on committees or removing any director or officer, may be taken without a meeting if initiated by the President (Chair) and a consent in writing setting forth the action to be taken, is signed by at least two-thirds (2/3) of all of the Directors, provided all Directors receive notice of the text of the written consent and of its effective date and time. Any such consent signed by two-thirds (2/3) of all of the Directors has the same effect as a two-thirds (2/3) vote taken at a duly convened meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present and may be stated as such in any document filed with the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions. For purposes of this section, pursuant to § 181.0821(1r) of the Wisconsin Statutes, "in writing" includes a communication that is transmitted or received by electronic means, including electronic mail ("email"), and "signed" includes an electronic signature, as defined in §181.0103(10p) of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended from time to time.

Section 14: Attendance. An officer or director who misses two consecutive meetings may be <u>removed</u> asked to resign by a vote of a simple majority at a regular Board meeting. State Board Presidents will be asked to have

their Boards appoint a replacement representative to the LWV UMRR ILO Board if a state representative has two consecutive unexcused Board meetings.

Section 15: Vacancies. If a vacancy of an officer or director occurs, the Board will appoint an individual to fulfill that position until the term is completed.

ARTICLE V- ANNUAL MEETING

- Section 1: Date. The date of the annual meeting shall be determined by the LWV-UMRR ILO board.
- **Section 2: Place.** The location of each annual meeting shall be determined by the **LWV-UMRR ILO** board. The place shall rotate around the four states.
- **Section 3: Composition.** The annual meeting shall be composed of the following voting delegates:
- a) One delegate from each member League that is current in its dues payment. Any League may designate a member of another League to serve as its proxy.
 - b) Members of the board.
- Section 4: Qualification and Voting. Each delegate shall be a member and shall be entitled to one vote.
- **Section 5: Powers.** The annual meeting shall consider and authorize a program for study and action, shall elect officers, shall adopt a budget for the ensuing year, and shall transact such other business as may properly come before it.
- **Section 6: Required representation at Annual Meeting/Quorum**. At least one League from each member state and at least one- fifth (1/5) of the member local Leagues must be represented at the annual meeting for any actions to be taken. Decisions can be approved by a simple majority of the voting delegates registered at the annual meeting.

ARTICLE VI- NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

Section 1: Nominating Committee. The nominating committee shall consist of at least five (5) members, up to three (3) two (2) of whom shall may be members of the board. There shall be a member from each of the four (4) states. The chair of the nominating committee shall not be a member of the board, and shall be elected at the annual meeting. The nomination of the nominating committee chair shall be made by the current nominating committee. The other members of the committee shall be appointed by the board. Vacancies shall be filled by the board.

Section 2: Suggestions for Nominations. At least five (5) four (4) months prior to the annual meeting, the chair of the nominating committee shall request suggestions for nominations for offices to be filled. The request will be made to the president of each member League. Suggestions shall be sent to the chair of the nominating committee at least three (3) two (2) months before the annual meeting.

Section 3: Report of the Nominating Committee and Nominations from the floor. The report of the nominating committee of its nominations for officers, directors, and the nomination committee chair shall be sent to the member Leagues at a minimum of one (1) month before the date of the annual meeting. The report of the nominating committee shall be presented to the annual meeting during the business session. Immediately following the presentation of this report, nominations may be made from the floor, provided that the consent of the nominee shall have been secured. The election shall be conducted at the time specified in the Annual Meeting Agenda.

Section 4: Election. The election shall be by a written ballot except when there is but one (1) nominee for each office in which case the convention can move to accept the slate by acclamation. A majority of the votes cast shall constitute an election.

ARTICLE VII - PRINCIPLES AND PROGRAM

Section 1: Principles. The Principles are concepts of government adopted by the national convention and supported by the League as a whole. They are the authorization for the adoption of national, state and local program.

Section 2: Program. The program of the LWV-UMRR ILO shall consist of:

- a) Activities in support of the Principles and program of the LWVUS
- b) Those environmental issues that affect the Upper Mississippi River Region and are chosen by the annual meeting for concerted study and focused activities.

Section 3: Annual Meeting Action.

- a) At least five (5) months in advance of the annual meeting the board shall send to the presidents of local and state Leagues a status report of the current positions with explanations of activities taken under each position, and a request for program recommendations for the next year. The board shall ask for evaluation of the current positions, may ask for suggestions for study and/or focus and may make its own suggestions for study and/or focus.
- b) Local and state League boards may make recommendations for a program to the board at least three (3) months prior to the annual meeting.
- c) The board shall consider these recommendations and formulate a proposed program, which shall be sent to the members at a minimum of two (2) months before the annual meeting.
- d) The annual meeting shall be given a list of all program items submitted to the board but not selected by the board in addition to the board proposed program. The annual meeting may amend or modify the board proposed program by adopting a program item by a two-thirds vote of those present, which must include that of delegates from all four (4) state Leagues

- e) The annual meeting shall adopt a program by a majority vote of those present, which must include that of delegates from all four (4) state Leagues.
- f) Between annual meetings the board may choose to pursue a program item an issue not selected at the previous annual meeting if there is a unanimous vote of the entire board to do so.

Section 4: Action on LWV-UMRB ILO Program.

Action may be taken in the name of the LWV-UMRR ILO only when authorized to do so by the appropriate board(s). Such action must be in conformity with, and not contrary to, positions taken by the LWV-UMRR ILO, the LWVs of Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, and Wisconsin and the LWVUS.

ARTICLE VIII – FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION:

Section 1: Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of **LWV- UMRB ILO** shall conform to that of the League of Women Voters of the United States

Section 2: Dues. Annual dues per each <u>local member</u> League shall be \$25.00 determined by the Board. Any change in dues will be voted on at an annual meeting and will need to be approved by a 3/5's majority of the delegates voting.

Section 3: Budget Committee. The budget shall be prepared by a committee appointed for that purpose at least four (4) months before the annual meeting. Committee members shall represent the geographic diversity of the member state and local Leagues. The treasurer shall be, *ex officio*, a member of the budget committee but shall not serve as chair. The chair shall be a board member. At least one (1) non-board member shall serve on the committee.

Section 4: Budget. The board shall submit to the annual meeting for adoption by a three-fifths (3/5) vote a proposed budget to provide support for **LWV-UMRR ILO**. A copy of the proposed budget shall be sent to each state League president and to each local League president not less than two (2) months before the annual meeting.

Section 5: Distribution of Funds on Dissolution. In the event of the dissolution of the LWV-UMRR ILO, all moneys, securities, and all funds shall be distributed equally among the four (4) member state Leagues after all debts and other obligations have been met.

Section 6. Nonliability of Directors. The directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the corporation.

Section 7. Indemnification by Corporation of Directors and Officers. The directors and officers of the corporation shall be indemnified by the corporation to the fullest extent permissible under the laws of the state in which the ILO is incorporated as a not for profit corporation.

Section 8. Insurance for Corporate Agents. Except as may be otherwise provided under provisions of law, the board of directors may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation (including a director, officer, employee, or other agent of the corporation) against liabilities asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law.

ARTICLE IX - PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Parliamentary Authority. The rules in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern this organization in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws.

ARTICLE X- AMENDMENTS

Amendments to Bylaws. These bylaws may be amended at any annual meeting by three fifths (3/5s) vote provided that the proposed amendment was submitted by a member to the board at least three (3) months prior to the annual meeting. The board may appoint a bylaws committee to review and make recommendations for amendments for consideration at the annual meeting. The board shall send any proposed amendments to the presidents of the member Leagues at least two (2) months prior to the annual meeting. Failure of presidents of local Leagues to notify their members, or of state Leagues to notify their boards, of the proposed amendments shall not invalidate the adoption of such amendments by the annual meeting.

Proposed and Adopted at first Annual Meeting in Dubuque, Iowa, October 24, 2015

Changes in blue reflect recommendations by the Bylaws committee, changes in red added at the December 3, 2018, LWV UMRR Board Meeting.